
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

Date & Time - THURSDAY, 11TH DECEMBER, 2008 at 2.00 pm 

Venue - BOWLS CLUB ROOM, WATTON SPORTS 
CENTRE, WATTON 

 
 

REPRESENTATIVE ORGANISATION 
Councillor William Nunn (Chairman) Breckland 
David Ovenden (Vice-Chairman) Dereham Area Partnership 
Mike Austin Norfolk Constabulary 
Debbie Bartlett Norfolk County Council 
Ian Clarke Eastern Daily Press 
Tony Dickens Iceni Partnership, Swaffham 
John Dixon Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Andrew Egerton-Smith Norfolk PCT 
Katie Elliott Police 
Jan Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
John Gretton Norfolk County Council 
Andrew Heginbotham Norfolk Fire Service 
Trevor Holden Breckland 
Brian Horner Voluntary Norfolk 
Valerie Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Shirley Matthews Norfolk Association of Parish and Town Councils 
Jim Mullenger Iceni Partnership 
Neil Stott Keystone Development Trust 
Lucy Walker Learning Skills Council 
Caroline Williams Norfolk Chamber of Commerce 

 
 
 
 
Member Services     

Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Tuesday, 2 December 2008  
 

Public Document Pack



LSP Board 
11 December 2008 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 8 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2008.  
 

 

2. MATTERS ARISING   

3. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

4. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent 
business.  
 

 

5. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  
 

 

6. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK   

 To receive a presentation by David Spencer, Senior Planning Policy 
Officer.  
 

 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES   

 To receive a presentation by Sarah Bruton, Environmental Services 
Manager.  
 

 

8. YOUR NORFOLK, YOUR DECISION  9 - 18 

 To receive the attached report by Mark Fretwell, Breckland Partnership 
Officer.  
 

 

9. SPECIALIST COHESION PILOT   

 To receive an update from Rob Walker, Sustainable Communities 
Manager.  
 

 

10. WAYLAND COMMUNITY RADIO - INFORMATION POINT   

 To receive an update from Mark Fretwell, Breckland Partnership Officer.  
 

 

11. NEIGHBOURHOOD CHARTER  19 - 20 

 To receive the attached report by Rob Walker, Sustainable Communities 
Manager.  
 

 

12. HEALTHY TOWN STATUS - THETFORD  21 - 23 

 To receive the attached report by Rob Walker, Sustainable Communities 
Manager.  
 

 



LSP Board 
11 December 2008 

 
 

13. COMMUNITY SAFETY ACCREDITATION SCHEME   

 To receive a presentation by Mike Green, Norfolk Constabulary.  
 

 

14. PERFORMANCE REPORTING   

a) Pride in Breckland Project   

 Report by Rob Walker, Project Lead.  
 

 

b) Health and Wellbeing Project   

 Report by Martin Seymour, Project Lead.  
 

 

c) Economic Prosperity Project   

 Report by Mark Stanton, Project Lead.  
 

 

15. BUDGET   

 To receive an update on Partnership finances.  
 

 

16. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   

 To agree items for inclusion on the next or a future agenda.  
 

 

17. FUTURE MEETINGS   

 To note the following proposed dates for meetings next year: 
 

19 February 2009 
14 May 2009 
16 July 2009 
10 September 2009 
5 November 2009 

 
All meetings to commence at 2.00pm in the Anglia Room, The 
Committee Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda.  
 

 



 
 
 

 

1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 

Held on Thursday, 9 October 2008 at 2.00 pm in 
Anglia Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr J.W. Nunn (Chairman) Breckland 
Mr J. Dixon Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Ms K Elliott Police 
Mr G. Hayes (In place of Mr D. Ovenden) Dereham Area Partnership (Substitute) 
Mr A. Heginbotham Norfolk Fire Service 
Mr J. Joyce Norfolk County Council 
Mrs S. Matthews Norfolk Association of Parish & Town Councils 
Mr J Mullenger Iceni Partnership 
Ms L. Rogers (In place of Mr B. Horner) Voluntary Norfolk 
Mr M. Seymour Norfolk Primary Care Trust 
Ms L. Walker Learning Skills Council 
Mrs C. Williams Norfolk Chamber of Commerce 

 
Also Present  
Mark Fretwell 
Mrs S. Jewkes - NCC 
Caroline Money – NCSP 
Terry Scott – Norfolk Constabulary 
 

Reuben Ayavoo – GO East 
Ian Jacobs – GO East 
Patrick Loftman – GO East 
 

In Attendance  
Laura Apps-Green - Community Development Officer 
Tracey Baxter - Anti-Social Behaviour Officer 
Mark Fretwell - LSP Officer 
Grahame Green - Community Safety Officer 
Lisa Hilton - Corporate & E-Communications Officer 
Stephen James - Policy and Performance Manager 
Helen McAleer - Member Services Officer 
Mike Onassis - Pride Co-ordinator 
Kim Parks - Performance Officer 
Mark Stokes - Strategic Director (Services) 
Robert Walker - Sustainable Communities Manager 
Lindy Warmer - Economic Development Officer 

 
 Action 

By 

  
56/07 MINUTES   
  
 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 
Rob Walker introduced Mark Fretwell the new LSP Officer who would 
start work at Breckland Council on 3 November 2008. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2008 were agreed as a 
correct record.  

 

  

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

1



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

2 

 Action 
By 

 
57/07 APOLOGIES   
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Sylvia Armes, Ian Clarke, 

Debbie Bartlett, Andrew Egerton-Smith, Paul Elliott, Jan Godfrey, Brian 
Horner,Trevor Holden, Valerie Jenkins and David Ovenden.  

 

  
58/07 COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT   
  
 Sue Jewkes told members that she had been tasked with leading the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) for Norfolk.   
 
A whole range of regulatory bodies were involved in the consultation 
exercise to produce a new way of working which would reflect the 
changes in local government.  The aim was to provide joined up 
assessment for joined up local services.  People were not concerned in 
how services were delivered they just wanted that delivery done well. 
 
Previously this had not been achieved because so many different 
organisations had been doing the same thing in different ways.  This 
was not good value for money and efforts needed to be managed 
strategically across the whole area. 
 
Assessment was difficult because so many organisations were involved.  
Currently there were ten trials running.  A lot of information was being 
gathered with the emphasis on outcomes. 
 
The organisational assessment would be fed into the overall annual 
report to be published in November 2009 which would cover the period 
2008 – 2009, so the CAA year had already started. 
 
A reporting map system had been developed which would provide 
information down to town level.  It was not the intention to ‘score’ 
progress, but to red-flag issues that needed addressing and to green-
flag exceptionally good prospects and promising innovation. 
 
The old assessment framework was winding-up and the final report 
would be published in February 2009.  Comments on the CAA 
consultation would be accepted until 20 October 2008.  
 
In response to questions, Sue confirmed that: 
 

• local resources would be used wherever possible as a source 
for information; 

• the LSP role was incredibly important and would contribute 
towards the overall LAA outcomes.  Local priorities in the SCS 
closely matched those in the Local Development Framework 
and the County Strategy (Norfolk Ambition) but some LAA 
outcomes were ambitious and there was a need to look at the 
mainstream budget to see if things could be done differently; 

• the CAA was more forward looking than previous assessments 
and was aiming to facilitate partnerships and to work with them 
to get improvements. 

 
The Chairman thanked Sue for her presentation.  

 

2



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

3 

 Action 
By 

 
  
59/07 LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT   
  
 (a) Caroline Money from Norfolk County Strategic Partnership gave 

members an update on the progress of the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA). 

 
She explained that thematic partnerships and LSPs had 
identified their priorities from the National Indicator Set.  After 
negotiation the top 35 priorities were agreed.  These had been 
organised into eight cross-cutting outcomes to support 
innovative and joined up delivery. 
 
Since June work had been carried out on action planning, 
identifying risks, analysing resources and strengthening 
governance. 
 
An example was given using Indicator 1.1 (NI 152) Working age 
people on out of work benefits. 
 

• The target was to reduce the average rate of benefit 
claimants 

• County activity included creating a seamless service 
between organisations and those on benefits; 
implementing the Welfare to Workforce changes and co-
ordinating support to employers. 

• Breckland’s activity was in the BELA 2 Economic 
Prosperity project. 

• Risks such as external factors, local factors, challenging 
targets and the funding gap had been considered.   

• Resources – no new money was available but NCSP’s 
second homes monies had been allocated on a 70% to 
Area Based Grants and 30% to Participating Budget 
Route (Your Norfolk, Your Decision).  Analysis had been 
carried out on current and future spending.  RIEP had a 
pot of money to support LAA delivery. 

• Governance – to strengthen the accountability for 
delivery it had been agreed that there would be identified 
Indicator Leads, Lead Partnerships and Outcome 
Champions.  The Norfolk Action Team would co-ordinate 
the action; the NCSP Management Group would monitor 
performance and solve problems and the NCSP Board 
would have overall responsibility and a performance 
management role. 

 
The next steps included developing a Risk Register; focussing 
on the 14 indicators which had been identified as ‘at risk of 
delivery’ and allocating second homes monies. 
 

(b) Rob Walker said that the development of the LAA was a very 
inclusive process.  The challenge was to develop the SCS for 
Breckland at the same time.  All documents are aligned and 
reflect the priorities of different areas. 

 

 

3



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

4 

 Action 
By 

 
It was important to focus approach.  He had highlighted those 
indicators most important to Breckland in his report and 
apologised for omitting Indicator 7: Voluntary Sector 
Involvement.   
 
He felt that the LAA should work from community level upwards 
and reflect the priorities for local people. 

 
A member was concerned that the focus would turn to indicator 
monitoring at the expense of innovation. 
 
Another asked how the LSP could evidence its contributions and 
Caroline agreed that a way to do this would have to be worked out.  
 
Rob referred to the £200,000 available for community projects under the 
eight indicators.  Flyers were available and he encouraged members to 
publicise this. 
 
Caroline explained that a panel of 12 people was being assembled to 
help allocate this funding against LAA indicators at risk.  Those 
partnerships involved could bid for the money.  The bid had to be made 
through the LSP.  Suggestions should be put forward at the next 
meeting. 
 
An information event on the process was being held on Monday 13 
October.  Steering Group Application Forms and Criteria would be 
available afterwards.  All details were on the flyer. 
 
The Chairman thanked Caroline for her presentation.  

  
60/07 SPECIALIST COHESION PILOT   
  
 Reuben Ayavoo and Partick Loftman from GO-East gave a quick 

presentation on the Specialist Cohesion Pilot. 
 
The aim was to recognise good practice and identify gaps while 
reviewing Breckland Council’s progress, with its partners, towards 
building stronger and more cohesive communities. 
 
The Terms of Reference for the Pilot set out the following aims and 
outputs: 
 

• Agreed way forward 

• Multi-stakeholder buy-in 

• Focus on migration and its effects on cohesion and 
building stronger communities 

• Develop IDeA benchmark 
 
The benefit of this would be to develop services and enhance skills. 
 
Support was available for local media handling, statistical analysis and 
hate crime, and training offered on communications and leadership.   
 
This was not an audit or an assessment.  The intention was to share 

 

4



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

5 

 Action 
By 

 
good practice, not just amongst local partners but nationally and to 
identify challenges. 
 
There would be engagement with key stakeholders at Breckland and at 
County level to get views and opinions.  There would also be interviews 
with community groups.  These would take place in the last week of 
October and the first week of November. 
 
The information gathered would be used to develop a migrant worker 
Action Plan which would be published in January. 
 
Rob Walker reiterated that accurate information was needed with regard 
to migrant worker communities and urged partners to book an interview.  
It was important that best practice was recognised and problem areas 
identified.  The key role was delivering outcomes of this review and 
action planning work. 
 
Limited resources were available and therefore the focus of the pilot 
would be on three towns (Dereham, Thetford and Swaffham) but it was 
hoped to involve rural areas as well. 
 
The Chairman asked if there was any way the LSP Board could assist 
and again partners were asked to be available for interviews as the 
time-frame was short.  

  
61/07 CHERRY TREE CAR PARK (DEREHAM) - PARTNERSHIP PROJECT   
  
 Terry Scott from the Norfolk Constabulary acknowledged that often the 

Council did not receive recognition for the work it did in partnership with 
the Constabulary.  He wanted to highlight the good work done by the 
Breckland Against Crime Partnership. 
 
At the recent Tilley Awards, they had been runners-up out of 120 entries 
for the efforts made in relation to the Cherry Tree Car Park in Dereham.   
 
A Local Residents Group had raised concerns that their quality of life 
was deteriorating because the car park was being used as a race track.  
The Constabulary were receiving about 25 complaints a month. 
 
A door-to-door survey of residents was carried out to discover what the 
problems were and these were general anti-social behaviour mainly 
involving young males aged 17-21, cars and loud music.   
 
Residents were asked to assist the police by providing registration 
numbers of the cars involved and the majority were willing to do so.   A 
large tree in a local resident’s garden, which was obscuring the view of 
CCTV cameras, was lopped.  Signs were erected in the car park to 
warn that registration numbers were being recorded. 
 
100 drivers were identified, 20 were sent warning letters and five cars 
were seized.  The letters made clear the consequences of continued 
anti-social behaviour.  The youths were spoken to and most were 
unaware of the effects of their behaviour.  To try to overcome this, 
‘Respect Zones’ have been introduced in the car park.  These areas are 

 

5



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

6 

 Action 
By 

 
marked in green paint and have notices explaining their meaning.  Their 
effect will be monitored. 
 
Residents were kept regularly updated on what the police were doing 
and their expectations were managed.  They were happy that the police 
were responding to their concerns. 
 
A member thought this was excellent work and was keen for it to be 
promoted in all rural communities to encourage people to come forward 
with projects.    

  
62/07 PERFORMANCE REPORTING   
  
 a) TEN Performance Management 

 
Two members from Breckland Council’s Policy and Performance 
Team gave a demonstration of the TEN computer system which 
was already used to monitor the Council’s performance and had 
been developed to enable the management of LSP 
performance. 
 
The LSP version could be accessed from a link on the Breckland 
Council Homepage and was expected to ‘go live’ by the end of 
the year.   
 
Members were advised that the information would be available 
to the general public to view. 
 
Details of projects, lead officers, etc would be included and 
could be updated regularly.  More information would be added 
as it became available.  The system was easy to navigate and 
contained a search facility and reference guide.  It also had the 
facility to produce reports from the information stored. 
 
This system was a big step forward and reflected the LSP’s 
commitment to performance management. 

 
b) Pride in Breckland Project 
 

Rob Walker introduced Mike Onassis, the new Pride Co-
ordinator, recently appointed and previously with the Fire and 
Rescue Service. 
 
Laura Apps-Green drew attention to the Pride in Breckland 
Award Scheme nomination forms included in the agenda and 
asked members for their help in promoting this event which 
would take the same form as Pride in Britain and would 
celebrate unsung heroes in the community. 
 
The award ceremony would be held at Lynford Hall on 28 March 
2009. 
 
The Pride in Breckland Project had been launched in the five 
towns and the Pride Line was up and running.  Now that the new 

 

6



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

7 

 Action 
By 

 
Co-ordinator was in post the project should gather momentum.  
It was hoped to expand the Community Ranger scheme and 
possibly introduce Youth Rangers. 
 
The challenge was not just about improving service but 
providing the community with the ability to make improvements 
itself. 

 
c) Health and Wellbeing Project 
 

Martin Seymour told members that a project plan had been 
developed in conjunction with Dereham and North Elmham GP 
Partnership.  A PCT colleague had been appointed to take this 
forward. 
 
Money was being sourced to ensure that the work done in 
Breckland would be continued elsewhere to give better long 
term delivery. 
 
They were liaising with various partners, including the Pension 
Service, looking at falls as the trigger for more involvement to 
ensure that people were receiving the right benefits, etc. 
 
Work was proceeding slowly, but a good outcome was 
expected. 
 
Rob Walker told members that a bid for £900,000 of Department 
of Health funding for Health Town Status for Thetford had gone 
through Stage 2 and looked likely to be successful at Stage 3.  

 
d) Economic Prosperity 
 

Breckland’s Economic Development Officer told members that 
BELA 1 had finished in September after running successfully for 
18 months.  The grant target had been achieved and about 40 
businesses had been assisted. 
 
BELA 2 was aimed at providing website set-up and support and 
with ESOL, pre-ESOL and training for community workers.  
Train the trainer courses would enable migrant communities to 
more effectively help themselves. 
 
The new scheme launch would be publicised in Voice and in the 
EDP.  

  
63/07 PARTNERSHIP FUNDING   
  
 The Chairman reminded members that Breckland had committed 

£200,000 to the Pride in Breckland project on the understanding that 
other partners would come forward with support.  
 
The Fire and Rescue Service had committed three local risk managers 
for the lifespan of the project and also £15,000.  This comprised a 
£5,000 lump sum with the rest as an incentive for projects.  This 

 

7



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
9 October 2008 

 
 

8 

 Action 
By 

 
commitment would be reviewed after 12 months and it was hoped it 
would be on-going. 
 
A message had been received from Debbie Bartlett who had been 
unable to attend the meeting.  She said that Norfolk County Council 
spent a significant amount of money on highway works.  There was 
£100,000 set aside for maintenance projects in Breckland and this could 
be aligned to Pride projects.  Paul Elliott would sit on the project board.  
Such things as lighting, drainage and sign cleaning could be included. 
 
Norfolk County Council was also prepared for its libraries to be used as 
a shop front for Pride projects. 
 
Katie Elliott said that all SNTs were already working towards Pride in 
Breckland objectives.  She had a small budget for problem solving of 
anti social behaviour, etc and would be willing to consider making 
money available on a case by case basis. 
 
Martin Seymour said the PCT had no money available but they would 
like to be involved in the Pride and projects and could offer officer time. 
 
The Chairman thanked everyone.  He said that previously everyone had 
set budgets individually and that delivery of this project depended on 
being willing to be flexible.  

  
64/07 BUDGET   
  
 £110,000 had been carried forward from last year and about £77,000 

was expected from second homes council tax. 
 
£90,000 would go on the salary for the new LSP officer and money had 
been committed to other projects.  About £43,000 remained 
uncommitted. 
 
Previously about £77,000 had been received year on year, from second 
homes council tax but this amount could not be relied on for next year.  

 

  
65/07 FUTURE MEETINGS   
  
 The next meeting of the LSP Board would be on Thursday 11 

December 2008 at 2pm in the Bowls Club Room, Watton Sports 
Centre, Watton.  

 

 
 
The meeting closed at 4.07 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

8



BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

11 DECEMBER 2008 
 

Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership Officer, Breckland Council 
 
 

Your Norfolk Your Decision - Application 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To inform and update LSP Board Members of the recent application to the Your 
Norfolk, Your Decision Norfolk’s Participatory Budgeting Pilot 

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
2.1 Note [for information] the contents of this report. 
 

 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 Your Norfolk, Your Decision is run by Norfolk County Strategic Partnership, 
supported by a team of Norfolk County Council officers. The geographical area 
covered is Norfolk and the funding is from Council Tax second homes money.  

3.1.2    This is part of the Government’s third round of Participatory Budgeting Pilots, but 
Norfolk is the only Pilot that is aligned to the Local Area Agreement.  

3.1.3   There is £200,000 in total available and the funds will be spent to meet key Norfolk 
Local Area Agreement targets that are at risk of delivery. The process will be a small 
grants model with applications welcomed from organisations and partnerships that 
are part of Norfolk County Strategic Partnership. 

3.1.4    A Steering Group of local residents from Norfolk have decided the LAA themes that 
the Pilot will focus on, the format of the application forms and the criteria for short-
listing proposals. They have also agreed to hold a Decision Day Event, where it is 
anticipated that 250 local residents will vote on the short-listed proposals.  

3.1.5    Living and Working in Norfolk: 

• 2.3 (NI 177) 16-18 year olds who are NEET 

• 5.1 (NI 1) % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well 
together in their local area (Designated) 

3.1.6   A safer place to live: 

• 6.5 (NI 32) Repeat incidents of domestic violence (Designated) 

• 6.8 (NI 111) First time entrants into the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 
(Designated) 

• 6.3 (NI 21) Dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime 
issues by the local council and police (Designated) 
 

Agenda Item 8

9



 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1    The application was short listed from an impressive turnout of 54 applications from a 
wide range of partner organisations and partnerships for projects amounting to 
£1,613,155!  

3.2.2    The (3D) project will be presented at the Your Norfolk, Your Decision Day event on 
Saturday 6th December.  

3.2.3   The projects if successful in gaining funding will contribute to the delivery of national 
indicators included in the Norfolk Local Area Agreement together with local priorities 
of the Breckland Partnership. 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To note [for information] the contents of this report. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 The potential of funding through this pilot would assist greatly in the delivery of the 
priorities of the Breckland Partnership and the County L.A.A concerning Anti Social 
Behaviour, the reduction of crime, getting on well together and positive opportunities 
for young people who are not in education, employment or training (NEET). 

 
 
 

10



 
About your organisation / partnership 

Q1 Name of organisation / partnership 

Breckland Council 
Q2 Address 
Breckland Council, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, 
NR19 1EE 

 
Main contact for this application 

Q3 Title / name / surname 
 

Mr Mark Fretwell 

Q4 Position 
 

Partnership Officer (LSP) 

Q5 Email 
 

mark.fretwell@breckland.gov.uk 

Q6 Phone 01362 656 822 
 

About your project 

Q7 What is the name of your project? 

The '3-D' project (three diversion projects) 
 
 
Q8 Which theme does your project fall under? (See guidance notes)   
Please click on all boxes that apply 
 
A.  Living and working in Norfolk 
 
Getting on well together   
Positive opportunities for young people who are 
not in education, employment or training   

 

 
B.  A healthier Norfolk for all 
 
Being active for better health  
Services for disabled children  
Social care for those needing support  
 
C.  A safer place to live 
 
Reducing domestic violence  
Young people involved with crime  
Perceptions of reducing crime and anti-social 
behaviour 

 

 
 
 

Your Norfolk, Your Decision Application form 
 
Please complete the form in plain English, without using any acronyms.                

11



Q9 Tell us how your project will meet the theme?  What project or activities will 
take place if you receive a grant?  Please write in here – up to 150 words. 
 
It meets the local priorities, & the National Indicators (4) as shown. It targets a 
range of young people from  a wide range of backgrounds within our 
communities. Three separate projects  
1)YBYz drama (Making Right Choices)  fits National curriculum & aims to make 
children understand  the implications of their choices & behaviour. The 
production has received positive feedback  - self-funded ("excellent performance 
which captured children's imaginations, with clear messages"). N.I 1 / 21  
2) Beyond Image Productions drama - a performance which will be aimed at 
years 5,6 & 7 & also 8, 9,10 & 11. A tailored package around key ASB issues 
affecting young people. N.I 1 / 21 / 111 / 117  
3) Prison Me No Way - steers young people away from crime & its 
consequences using highly innovative educational techniques. Providing a 
quality service to help young people make a success of their lives, using an 
innovative, fresh approach that encourages a positive decision making process. 
N.I 1 / 21 / 111 / 117  
 
Q10 Which Norfolk County Strategic Partnership partner, or partnership, is this 
application sponsored / supported by?  Please write in here - up to 50 words. 
 
The Breckland Partnership (LSP) It supports the LSP objectives of 
reducing incidents of ASB, reducing fear of crime, increasing the 
participation & engagement of local people from different backgrounds. 
The Breckland Against Crime Partnership are fully supportive of the 3 
projects via resources, information & support.   
 

 
Making a difference 
 
Q11 What difference will your project make to local people? Please write in here 
– up to 150 words. 
 
The projects aim to assist young people's understanding of (ASB) & crime & to 
make the right choices regarding their own behaviour. It will give them the tools 
to be more socially responsible & to be a welcome part of the community. The 
projects will involve rural schools & residents. The projects utilize existing strong 
partnerships whilst developing further collaborative work to build effective 
partnerships. The projects will aim to educate all attendees on the importance of 
getting on well together with people from different backgrounds to develop 
community cohesion (Breckland  placed 13th from bottom Nationally), this clearly 
needs addressing. The projects although targeted towards ASB & Crime issues, 
there will be opportunities to promote other service areas, projects & 
partnerships during the programmes. It is anticipated to hold a full day session at 
Breckland Council where the Youth Council, Pride In Breckland, team surgeries, 
health, sporting & other opportunities can be promoted. 

 
Q12 How many people do you expect to 
benefit directly from your project? 

2100 

 
 

12



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q13 What ages are the people who you hope to benefit? Estimate how many 
people fit each group and put a number in the box. 
 

Up to 
24  

2100 25-64       65+       All ages       

 
Q14 Where do most of the beneficiaries live? 
 
Name of town, city or village The 5 - S.N.T market areas & rural areas 
Local authority area Breckland District 
 
Q15  If your project is not Norfolk wide please tell us how you intend to share 
your learning across Norfolk if your bid is successful.  Please write in here – up 
to 100 words. 
 
Presentations & workshops offered to LSP Network & County Strategic 
Partnership & other key partnership network groups & meetings. 
Disseminate information through a wide range of media tools & publicity 
of  events both internally & externally. 
Produce project reports with a user friendly evaluation of the individual 
aspects of each project & with clearly defined outcomes & delivery. 
Share best practise & the lessons learned within the County & beyond. 
Web links via Norfolk County Council website & District websites together 
with statutory organisations & third Sector partners across the County. 
Open access to documents & information throughout the project. 
 
   
Q16 Is your project directed at or particular 
relevance to a group of people? 

Yes  No  

 
Q17 If yes, please tick to say who will benefit.  Please click on all that apply 
 
Disabled people  Young people  
Older people  Carers  
Parents  Women and girls  
Families  Communities  
Disadvantaged people living 
in rural areas 

 Disadvantaged people 
living in urban areas 

 

Other (Please say)All sections of a community should benefit 
 

13



 
 
 

What’s different? 
 
Q18 What, if anything, is different or innovative about your project or way of 
working?  What makes you think your new approach will work? Please write in 
here – up to 150 words. 
 
The project is a first for Breckland Council in using preventative measures to 
reduce ASB & crime whilst educating groups about respect for others. It will 
target a wide range of age groups (9 -19 y) interactive learning, appropriate  
content, young people from different backgrounds & exploring current youth 
issues. The projects aim to be fully inclusive capturing the market towns together 
with the rural communities. It aims to develop further cohesion within our 
communities.The Beyond Image Productions drama will be the first in Norfolk 
which has been tailored to cover a broad range of ASB that is accessible. The 
participants & partner agencies involved will also be provided with additional 
relevant information regarding other services or opportunities available within the 
District & County. The project aims to deliver value for money and will achieve 
sustainable results for those that participate & subsequent dissemination across 
the County, sharing the proven outcomes & the best practise. 

 

 

Your project plan 
 
Q19 When are you planning your project to take place? 
 
Start date  February 2009 End date  February 2010 
 
Q20 What are the key milestones for your project? 
 
What will you be doing? When will you be doing it? 
Promoting each of the Projects to all 
partnerships 
 

Once funding allocated (Dec & Jan) 

Planning each of the 3 projects in 
consultation with the key agencies & 
the young people (audience) 
 

Jan & Feb 2009 

Action plan & project management for 
the delivery of the 3 projects 
 

Feb & March 2009 

Deliver each of the 3 Projects 
 

Feb - October 2009 

Publicity & dissemination of 
outcomes & presentations 
 

Oct - February 2010 

      
 

      

14



An application to the Breckland Local Strategic Partnership Board & the 
Breckland Against Crime Partnership will be submitted in December to request 
funding support for the three projects. If there is a shortfall in funding this will be 
requested from partner agencies & for additional funding to expand the projects.  

 

Q24 If we could not give you all the money you have asked for would you be able 
to scale your project down?  Please click on one box 
 
Yes  No  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Q21 How much money do you need from Your Norfolk, Your Decision? 
 
£ 15000 

 

Q22 How much is your project going to cost? 
 
Item/activity A:  Cost B: Requested from Your 

Norfolk, Your Decision 
YBYz (31 performances) £ 3100 £       
Beyond Image 
productions (3 full day 
performances 

£ 4000 £       

Prison Me No Way (2 full 
day sessions) 

£ 4800 £       

Transport, Promotional 
activities & 
Refreshments 

£ 1000 £       

      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       
Total  Total A £ 12900 Total B £ 12900 

 
Q 23 If the total in column A is higher than that total in column B where is the rest 
of the funding coming from?  Please tell us if you already have this money.  
Please write in here – up to 50 words. 
 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 

Q25 If yes, please show us your scaled down costs here   
 
Item/activity A:  Cost B: Requested from Your 

Norfolk, Your Decision 
YBYz (31 
performances) 

£ 3100 £ 3100 

Beyond Image 
productions (2 full day 
performances 

£ 2600 £ 2600 

Prison Me No Way (1 
full day sessions) 

£ 2400 £ 2400 

Transport, Promotional 
activities & 
Refreshments 

£ 600 £ 600 

      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       
      £       £       

      £       £       
      £       £       
Total Total A £ 8700 Total B £ 8700 
 

Q26 What contribution, if any, are you making towards this project? Please write 
in here – up to 50 words. 
 
The Breckland Council is able to commit resources in kind in terms of staff 
support & direct involvement. Provision of equipment & hosting an event at 
the Breckland conference rooms with suitable facilities.   
 

 

Q27  All projects need to meet their own organisations or partnership’s policies.  
Please click box to confirm that this project meets your internal polices. 
 
I confirm that this proposed project meets our organisation’s policies.   
 

 
 
 
 

Evaluation 
 
Q28 How will you be able to tell if your project works?  Please tell us how you will 
measure the success of your project here – up to 100 words. 
 

16



Monitoring throughout with feedback & evaluation on all aspects of the 
projects in terms of its delivery & the outcomes. 
Customer satisfaction  forms completed by all participants & partners. 
Partner agencies feedback & involvement during the planning of the events 
Use best practise models & ensure that the projects are implemented with 
focus to ensure proven outcomes.  
Tailor projects to the needs of the audience through consultation 
(appropriate to age group). 
Workshops for a County wide audience to share & evaluate.  
A reduction in ASB/crime & school exclusion rates in areas targeted  
Employment gained or educational  attainment by NEET participants. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Working together 
 
Q29 Does your project involve any other organisations / partnerships?  If yes, 
please list them here – up to 50 words. 
 
Breckland Council, Local schools (Junior & Secondary), YBYz (Why Be 
Wise drama), Beyond Image Productions, The Prison Service (The No-Way-
Trust), Safer Neighbourhood Teams, Youth Offending Team including YISP, 
Connexions, & The Local Strategic Partnership Board (external agencies & 
voluntary sector) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Finally... 
 
Q30 If your project is shortlisted you will be asked to come and give a short 
presentation on Decision Day.  Please give us a summary of your project of 50 
words or less for us to include in the decision day pack.   
 
The '3D' projects will capture in the region of 2,100 young people within the 
age band  9-19 years within Breckland thereby offering significant value for 
money.  It will be highly interactive & will educate young people in an 
interesting & innovative way to allow them to understand life decisions & 
their consequences.  
 

 
 
 
 

17



Thank you for your application! 
 
 
Please email your completed application to:  
gita.prasad@norfolk.gov.uk 
 
 
Or you can post the completed application to: 
Gita Prasad  
Policy, Performance and Research Officer 
County Hall 
Martineau Lane 
Norwich 
Norfolk 
NR1 2DH 
 
 
By:  20 November 2008 

18



Cleaner I Safer I Greener
Charter for the District of Breckland

The Vision: The Cleaner, Safer, Greener Charter genuinely 

involves us all as residents and stakeholders in improving our 

local environment. This Charter can help us all work alongside each 

other and take action on matters that matter most to local people 

to help improve the quality of life in the district.

The Pledge: We, the undersigned, all share the vision for a Cleaner, 

Safer and Greener Breckland. We will continue to listen to our residents 

views, support the delivery of all neighbourhood services and work closely 

with the community to help make Breckland a Clean, Safe and Green 

place to live, work and visit.

Breckland Council Peddars Way NCC – Norfolk

Housing Association County Council

Local Strategic Partnership RSL Alliance

Norfolk Fire Service Norfolk Constabulary 

Agenda Item 11

19



Report Problems
Breckland

Council
Peddars Way

Housing
Norfolk County

Council
Norfolk
Police

Fire
Brigade

Abandonded or 
Nuisance Vehicles

Anti-Social Behaviour

Crime (Inc. Arson)

Dog Fouling

Fire Safety Enquiries
(Commercial)

Free Home Fire
Safety Check

Flyposting

Flytipping

Litter

Litter/Dog Bins
(emptying)

Roads and 
Pavements

Report Problems or 

Issues Promptly

Report Problems or 

Issues Promptly

Street Lighting
Report Problems or 

Issues Promptly

Report Problems or 

Issues Promptly

Vandalism

Waste & Recycling 
(collection)

Report Problems or 

Issues Promptly

Waste & Recycling 
(disposal at recycling 

centres)

Direct Responsibilty Working as a partner with shared responsibilty

Who is responsible and who should I contact?

ENCAMS is a national organisation that runs the Keep 

Britain Tidy campaign and the Blue Flag for Beaches and 

Eco-Schools programmes. ENCAMS also works closely 

with housing providers, local authorities and other land 

managers to improve local environmental quality and 

anti-social behaviour. 

They have worked with Breckland Council and Peddars 

Way Housing Association over a number of months, 

engaging with local stakeholders to jointly tackle the clean 

safe and green issues within the district of Breckland. They 

fully endorse the use of the Charter process in setting out 

local roles and responsibilities and support future work 

through this process.Copies of the full charter are available 

from Breckland Council (Telephone: 01362 656870).

Main Contact Telephone Numbers: 
Breckland Council: 01362 656 870

(General Enquires - Monday to Thursday 

08.00am - 18.00 & Friday 08.00 to 17.00).

Peddars Way Housing Association: 01362 694 858

(General Enquires Monday to Friday 09.00 to 17.00). 

Out-of-Hours Emergency Assistance: 01362 697194). 

If you are not a tenant of Peddars Way then you should contact 

your Landlord in the normal way.

Norfolk County Council: 0844 800 8020 (General Enquiries -   

Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00).

Norfolk Police: 0845 456 4567 (Non Emergency Number).

Norfolk Fire and Rescue Service: 01603 810951 (General Enquiries).

Emergency Number: 999
(only in an emergency where there is a danger to life or a crime is in progress) 

Pride in 
Breckland

01362
853296

24 hour answerphone 
to report 

environmental
issues.

This Breckland Council charter is 
printed on XX% Recycled Paper20



BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

11 DECEMBER 2008 
 

Report of Rob Walker, Sustainable Communities Manager, Breckland Council 
 
 

HEALTHY TOWN STATUS - THETFORD 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To inform and update LSP Board Members on the recent announcement of Healthy 
Town Status for Thetford.  

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
2.1 Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 
 

 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 In July 2008, a joint bid by Breckland District Council and NHS Norfolk was 
submitted to the Department Children, Schools and Families and Department for 
Health, for Thetford to become a ‘Healthy Town’.  As part of a £30 million Healthy 
Communities Challenge Fund, local areas were invited to come up with innovative 
ways to make regular physical activity and healthy food choices easier for local 
communities, with the aim of preventing obesity in England. 

3.1.2    The original guidance said:  

            “The Government is looking to work with a small number of local areas (PCTs and 
local authorities working together) which have a commitment to promoting healthy 
food choices and increased physical activity within their communities. Building on the 
progress they have made to date, these local areas will receive additional funding to 
test out their ideas on what further action needs to happen to make regular physical 
activity and healthy food choices easier for their population. The aim of this initiative 
is to learn more about how environmental factors can help to prevent overweight and 
obesity in adults and children. Therefore, it is vital that applicants put forward 
creative and original proposals which offer the opportunity to learn something new.” 

            “The Healthy Communities Challenge Fund can provide revenue funding of up to 
approximately £5 million to each local area over a 3-year period, between 2008/09 
and 2010/11.” 

3.1.3   Thetford was announced by Secretary of State for Health  - Alan Johnson - on 10 
November 2008 as one of nine towns which have been awarded ‘Healthy Town’ 
status, as part of the Government’s programme of work to tackle obesity. 

 
3.1.4    As one of the nine towns selected, Thetford will share the £30 million investment 

from Government to encourage healthy lifestyles through increasing opportunities for 
their population to be more active and make healthier food choices. 

3.1.5    Thetford was selected to participate in this exciting new programme after undergoing 
a rigorous selection process involving 3 stages. 

 

3.1.6 The Thetford proposals have three key elements: - 
 

Agenda Item 12

21



a) To embed health provision within the future development of Thetford and the built 
and community (or social) infrastructure  

b) To address issues of overweight and obesity through physical activity and 
community nutrition interventions with an approach that seeks to engage 
Thetford’s new and existing communities. 

c) To build on existing good practice in health promotion and the prevention of poor 
health using a ‘community development ‘ approach. 

3.1.7   The proposals include: - 

 
a) To undertake a comprehensive Health Impact Assessment of the new 

development in Thetford.   
A Health Impact Assessment is an approach that ensures decision making at all levels 
considers the potential impacts of decisions on health and health inequalities. It identifies 
actions that can enhance positive effects and reduce or eliminate negative effects. The 
assessment will engage communities in a process that will enable people to voice their 
concerns and aspirations and which will build capacity and identify future priorities. 

 
b) To engage effectively with the planning agenda in Thetford 
Work to ensure that new health facilities and infrastructure are included in development 
plans where appropriate (e.g. GP surgeries, cycle paths, the provision of allotments, 
gardens and other public open space. etc.).  We will develop a ‘green gym’ and work 
with partners on projects that will enable GPs to refer directly into the walking 
programmes, cycling, green gym, etc. 

 
c) To promote healthier lifestyles within new communities 
Undertake consultation and research with migrant communities to establish health 
issues.  Initiate health promotion activities to improve access to formal health services 
and ability to make healthy lifestyle decisions. 

 
d) Promote Walking for Health and Cycle Recycle projects 
Increase provision of walking for health schemes across town and in surrounding rural 
hinterlands.  Introduce new Cycle Recycle project that increases level of cycling through 
a cycling for health programme, the promotion of active transport, improvements to the 
build infrastructure and to facilities for cyclists and the development of a recycling 
programme to train young people in cycle maintenance and  leadership and to supply 
refurbished equipment to support the delivery the programme. 

 
e) To develop comprehensive community food and nutrition programmes. 
Building on the successful Joy of Food pilots to increase awareness and knowledge, 
build confidence in a broad range of food skills and address food access issues through 
community food outlets and growing schemes. 

 
Establish a “small holding” activity programme based on best practice from Europe.   The 
programme will take people who are out of work through mental ill health, learning 
disability, on incapacity benefit but preparing to return to work and NEET; giving them 
gainful employment and training in a small holding / market garden.  Produce could be 
used to supply local food access projects, community food initiatives, schools and be 
supplemented out-of-season through an organic co-op. 

 
f) University-led research programme 
Work with the new Centre of Excellence - based at the Department of Public Health, 
Cambridge and Environmental Sciences & MED, Norwich – to research and evaluate 
initiatives which are taking place.  

 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1     The Department of Health have committed £90,000 funding for the remainder of this 
final year and expect a Project Initiation Document to be produced by 9 December 
and a full Project Plan by 21 January. 

22



3.2.2    Thetford will receive £900,000 funding from the Department of Health for the period 
2008-2011.  This funding will have to matched locally.   

3.2.3    NHS Norfolk will be the accountable body for the project and will work with partners 
(inc. Breckland District Council) to establish local delivery mechanisms 

3.2.4    The project will contribute to the delivery of national indicators included in the Norfolk 
Local Area Agreement: 1) Adult participation in sport and active recreation; 2) 
Obesity among primary school aged children. 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 Health Town status for Thetford represents a significant success for the district and 
will involve a range of partners in delivering a portfolio of projects aimed at 
increasing physical activity and reducing obesity. 

 
 
 

23


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Your Norfolk, Your Decision
	Your Norfolk Yr Decision Application

	11 Neighbourhood Charter
	12 Healthy Town Status - Thetford

